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PERTH MARKET (DISPOSAL) BILL 2015 
Consideration in Detail 

Resumed from an earlier stage of the sitting. 
Clause 8: Disposal of market assets authorised — 
Debate was interrupted after the clause had been partly considered. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: The Treasurer may recall that before question time I asked a question about the 
seven members who I assume make up the board and the fact that their vote or authority is not required for the 
disposal or the sale. This question could relate to clause 8 or 9, but could the Treasurer confirm for me at what 
point after this legislation comes into effect the Perth Market Act 1926 will be repealed? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: It will be repealed upon completion of the transaction. 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: What will trigger the repeal? Will it be something in the Government Gazette? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: The minister will make an order and it will be gazetted. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: My question relates to the comment made by the Treasurer on this clause before question 
time about different bidders requesting a different structure for taxation purposes. Can I ask what type? Is this in 
relation to stamp duty upon purchase or other reasons? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: No, it would be corporations tax. 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: Corporations tax? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes, company tax, not state tax. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Can the Treasurer elaborate on that? I was not here to listen to what my colleague the 
member for Cannington said. Does the authority or the Crown impact upon the level of tax payable? Can the 
Treasurer explain that impact? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: We are allowing potential bidders to have the transfer from either the authority or the state. 
They might have a variety of reasons for doing that, but I am not aware of all of them and I am not across 
whether or not they have asked. All we are doing is allowing two types of transfers. I am not aware of the 
comprehensive reasons that may be done. Another opposition member asked earlier for an example of why that 
may be—not is—and my advice was that it could be for the company tax. I cannot answer about the details of 
why that may be. 

Clause put and passed. 

Clause 9: Minister may order disposal of market assets — 
Ms R. SAFFIOTI: My issue relates to the order of events. I understand that the expression of interest is out and 
the initial bids are in. Can I just clarify whether the EOI process stipulated that the markets would be required to 
remain markets only for 20 years? Was that 20-year provision part of the EOI process? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: For example, if the Parliament were to change the time period from 20 years to 50 years, 
would that impact the current EOI process? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Why did the EOI process start before Parliament had the chance to consider the nature and 
structure of this sale? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: We structured the process to conform to the way we thought it should be done, including 
a moratorium to keep the market as a wholesale market for 20 years, and we sought expressions of interest. We 
had to test the market. We did not expect this but we were advised that we would get quite a few expressions of 
interest, which we did—we got 15. Not all of them were suitable but we had to test the market and in order to do 
that we needed some understanding of the conditions that relate to the disposal. That is what we did. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: This is a significant piece of legislation. As I said, I think the markets were initially created 
in the 1840s, but the Perth markets were created by legislation in 1926. They have performed a key function for 
over 100 years, and we are disposing of these markets. Firstly, there was little or no consultation with growers. 
Secondly, we are now told that the legislation has been brought in concurrently with the sale process. In a sense, 
the executive has pretty much usurped the role of Parliament in that the government structured a sale well before 
it sought Parliament’s approval for that sale. I am talking in particular about the conditions. This is not just a bit 
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of land that can be flogged off; it involves the current operations of the only wholesale market in the 
metropolitan area. Did the government consider having the legislation in place before it began the sale process? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: No, we did not. As I said, we identified this land as an asset, went out for advice and then 
obtained expressions of interest. In order to do so, we had to put together some conditions on the requirements of 
that sale and get expressions of interest. That included a 20-year minimum period, and we got the bids on that 
basis. This is a very important asset. That is why we stipulated a minimum period of 20 years and that is why 
one of the purposes of the sale is to ensure that the successful bidder invests a large amount of money into 
encouraging and expanding the facility—the asset. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: In relation to the assessment process, I think yesterday we asked for the weightings that were 
given to the key criteria. Can the Treasurer provide the chamber with those weightings?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes, I can. I table the document.  

[See paper 3599.] 

Mr B.S. WYATT: I refer to the Treasurer’s comment that, in respect of the sale, the successful bidder would be 
required to put a large amount of money into the market. Is there a specific requirement for the size of the 
investment? I am interested in that comment and where in the bill the provision that requires a large amount of 
money to be invested is. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: As part of the bidding process, looking at the weighted criterion, people will come and not 
only offer a certain price for the asset, but also indicate what they are going to do with the asset. Some of the 
conditions are that we have to ensure that respondents are committed to and understand that they need to manage 
and expand the market. We are also looking at their development plans for the market as part of the bid process. 
One of the objectives of the whole process is to ensure that the private sector purchaser has the capacity not just 
to manage the market and continue to operate it but improve it in various forms and also invest in expanding the 
asset base of the market. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: Last night and again on radio this morning, I think the Treasurer made the point that the 
Perth Market Authority had come to the government looking for $250 million to invest in cold storage — 

Dr M.D. Nahan: A whole range of assets. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: It sounds as though, from the comments made by the Treasurer and the member for 
Southern River last night, the cold storage assets were in need of investment. Is that investment in the cold 
storage assets a condition of the sale to whoever the bidder is? Is that something the Treasurer will be including 
in that contractual document? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: The evaluation criteria have been handed around. I will read it. This is weighted 35 per cent 
of the total value. The other factors are experience — 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: What is weighted 35 per cent? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: The future intentions for development of Market City. The valuation criteria are as follows. 
Future intentions for the wholesale market is weighted at 35 per cent. The respondent must demonstrate 
a considered and in-depth understanding of the project itself and the importance of the wholesale market. It must 
submit a plan for meeting the market’s continuity obligations. The respondent should outline its intended approach 
and process framework for how it intends to keep informed of relevant industry trends. The tenth evaluation criteria 
states that the respondent must submit a plan that details specific improvements to the site, considering the market 
continuity obligations to provide adequate warehousing capacity for the fresh produce industry for the next 
20 years. The respondent should also outline its intended approach and process framework et cetera. 

In making a bid—we are flexible on this—we expect the respondent to come forward with not only the price but 
also an understanding of and commitment to running the wholesale market and the development process. One of 
our key issues is the expansion of the facility. In relation to the points raised by the members for Victoria Park 
and Southern River, about three or four years ago, for the first time in over a decade, despite what the former 
Treasurer told me were annual requests for more cold storage, we invested something like $12 million into cold 
storage and it was filled almost immediately. Because of the lack of development and investment in cold storage, 
cold storage units have been built in the area by other groups that use the market—they have gone out and 
developed their own. The Perth Market Authority has repeatedly come forward. When we had discussions about 
what we should do with the asset, the authority argued that there needed to be a $250 million investment in the 
asset, not just cold storage. It did not detail what that would entail but substantial investment was required in the 
longer term for the asset to meet its potential for the horticulture industry. That is one reason that during this 
bidding process we are looking at a range of factors, such as price and knowledge and not just a commitment to 
developing it, but details of the commitment to developing the asset base. 
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Mr P. ABETZ: Obviously, the sale contract that is entered into will have various conditions in it because if the 
successful bidder promises to do certain things, that needs to be written into the contract. Once the final contract 
is signed, sealed and delivered, will that be made public so that the merchants and the growers can see what the 
new purchaser has committed to and, in a sense, map out the future? Also, what penalties would there be for 
failure to meet the conditions of the contract? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Our intention is that once the contract is signed, it will be tabled in Parliament. Therefore, it 
would be made publicly available. When we go through the later clauses, members will see that penalties are 
built into this, but any specifics to the contract will be made public when we make the contract public. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: That was a good question from the member for Southern River. I am glad that the contract 
will be made public. 

Opposition members made a number of comments during the second reading debate about potential lessons to be 
learnt from the freight rail network—that is, when it is onsold. Let us do a hypothetical and say that it is sold to 
one of the four remaining bidders, which we will call X. In five years, X decides it wants to sell it. Are there any 
requirements in the contract or this legislation under which the government, before that 20-year period, is 
required to approve the sale; or, at the very least, is there a stipulation either in this legislation or in the contract 
that if company X chooses at some point in the future—ideally, let us focus on that 20-year period—to onsell, 
effectively like a caveat, they need to buy or sell the property subject to the same terms and conditions, whoever 
the successful bidder is? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes, there are conditions. If it is onsold, for whatever reason, from X to Y, the sale contract 
has conditions that maintain the existing conditions; that is, if X buys it under these arrangements and sells it to 
Y for whatever reason, Y must maintain the agreements made by X. The state also has the right to take a charge 
over the land to ensure that that transaction, and the conditions of that transaction, are met. If it is onsold from 
X to Y, under the sale contract Y has a responsibility to meet it and the state has the power to take a lien on 
a charge over the land to ensure that the conditions are met. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: That right to take that charge over the property will be within the contract? 

Dr M.D. Nahan: Yes. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: So whoever buys it from the state is fully aware that there is that right by the state. But 
I assume that would only be exercised by the state in the event that the state is concerned about the sale; or does 
that automatically come about if company X, which buys the markets from the government, indicates it is going 
to sell? I just want to get that right because this is actually an important point. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: The charge would apply if company X in this case was not meeting its obligations under the 
contract. If a purchaser was not meeting its obligation under the contract, the state can take a charge over the 
land. If the purchaser then wants to onsell it, the state can take a charge on the asset and they must get 
government consent for the transaction. If it is transacted to Y, and Y does not meet its obligations under the 
arrangement, the state can take a lien against it for the land. 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: What triggers the right for the state to take the charge? Is it a breach by the first company that 
buys terms from the state, or is that just there to exercise as the state feels is warranted? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: From the signing of the contract, there is a condition in it that under the conditions of the 
transaction the state has the right to take a lien on the property if, in the opinion of the state, the purchaser is not 
meeting its contract. That is transferable with the transfer. That power stays with the asset if it is transferred. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Thanks for tabling the evaluation criteria. I will go through this to get a good understanding. 
In assessing the bids, how is the Treasurer treating the final offer price in relation to the weighted criteria? What 
is the actual assessment process? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: There are two issues. One is they have confirmation that the bidder has knowledge, 
a commitment to it and is committed to invest in an asset. Then there is the price. There are other criteria, too, 
about the bona fides and strength of the owner to make sure the owner can carry through the commitments. The 
team will do a qualitative assessment of those. It will put them together and make a recommendation. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: A qualitative assessment will be done. The weighted criteria are 35 per cent, 35 per cent and 
30 per cent, which adds up to 100 per cent. I can understand that. Normally there is a price of 20 per cent, and 
other criteria that add up to 100 per cent. I do not understand how price is assessed against the weighted criteria. 
Dr M.D. NAHAN: The five groups that have been preselected for final bid meet the ability clauses. 
Ms R. Saffioti: Bona fides. 
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Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes, bona fides. There is a whole range of other things. There is price and qualitative 
weighted evaluation criteria. Price and the weighted evaluations are put together and they will look at those and 
make a judgement of the trade-offs between them. On weighted evaluation criteria 9, 10 and 11, they will take 
the four or five and evaluate them, make a weighting of them, and put that next to the price and make 
a recommendation. We will not necessarily take the highest bidder, but we are putting quite a bit of weight on 
the 9, 10 and 11 evaluation criteria. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: I understand what the Treasurer is saying, but I do not understand the difference because 
there is no weight given to price versus these three. I do not actually get that combination. For example, bid 1, 
$150 million, reaches 70 per cent; and bid 2, $120 million, reaches 85 per cent. How will that decision be made? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: It will be put to cabinet and cabinet will make a decision. Let us say there are three. We will 
have to make a decision on weight and price versus qualitative outcome, and make a choice between those three. 
I just make it clear that we are not necessarily going for the highest price. Price does not overwhelm the 
evaluation criteria. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: I want to clarify the process. Basically, all the remaining bidders will be assessed against 
weighted criteria and of course will have their price. How many of those bids go to cabinet? I did not see it, but 
an article from The Australian Financial Review that was read to me today said that there are two remaining 
bidders — 
Mr B.S. Wyatt: Two? 
Ms R. SAFFIOTI: That is what I was told today by John McGlue. 
Dr M.D. NAHAN: I am not momentarily involved in the bidding process. All I know is I have been told that one of 
the five has dropped out. To my knowledge there are still four. What the paper says is what the paper says. 
Ms R. SAFFIOTI: It is in the process. If there are four remaining bidders, and as long as no-one else drops out, 
those four bids go to cabinet with weighting against each one, or is there a recommendation from the team? 
Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes, that is right—with a recommendation from the assessment panel. They will give the 
recommendations to cabinet, but cabinet will have full information on price and evaluation and will make its 
choice. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: My question comes back to what the member for Victoria Park said about investment. This 
is a key point—a proposed investment, for example, about cold storage on the market site. I go back to the 
Westrail freight sale. A claim was made at the time that Wesfarmers would invest $400 million on the track. 
That was a different issue, and the sale contract did not eventuate in a timely manner. Let us say, as part of the 
process, that I am bidder one and my future intention is to spend $300 million on the best cold storage facility in 
the southern hemisphere—we often use that term. If the successful bidder has committed to that, is that then part 
of the sales contract? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: It is binding.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: How is it binding?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Certain conditions in the contract would be binding and if they did not meet those 
conditions, the state would have a right to take a lien over the property. The contract would contain various 
representations and warranties, including the member’s example. For instance, if they committed to build a cold 
storage facility over a period of time and they did not meet the various commitments and warranties, the contract 
would specify that the state had the right to take a lien over the property if they failed to meet the conditions of 
the binding contract.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: As part of the sale process is anything noted on the two titles over the 51 hectares that says 
that new owners are subject to a number of conditions?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: A caveat is placed on the title.  

Mr B.S. Wyatt: Is that at the time of the sale?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: That is important to note. A caveat will be put on the title that a new purchaser will have to 
comply with the conditions of the sales contract; is that how it will work?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes. The sale contract will have all these conditions that have been agreed to, whatever they 
may be. I am sure that the bidders will have different offers.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Which minister will administer this? Is it the Minister for Lands, who is responsible for 
titles? I certainly hope not, because that could be a problem.  
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Dr M.D. NAHAN: The Treasurer would have the right to enforce the contract.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Will that responsibility be written into the caveat?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: It is in the contract.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: I have a further question on the tender evaluation criteria. I note that some of the points 
under “experience” include the management of large multi-tenanted facilities, fruit and vegetable industry 
experience, and industrial property development. The Treasurer possibly cannot comment on this, but I suspect 
that is why the industry bid brought in the Queensland and New South Wales experience.  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: I am not going to comment on that.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: The other point I want to make relates to associated infrastructure, and I will use 
Perth Airport as an example of wealth transfer from the government to the private sector, although it was done in 
a different way. Let us say the site is developed either as part of the market or as an industrial or residential 
development—if they go through the planning process. Is there a condition of contributing to associated 
infrastructure, for example, road upgrades that normally need to occur and rail upgrades? Are any of those 
potential costs contemplated as part of the sale process?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: The advisers have indicated that no-one has asked, but because it is located specifically for 
a market in the Canning Vale industrial area, most of the infrastructure is already there.  

Ms R. Saffioti: So did the airport.  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes, but the airport expanded dramatically. This site has capacity for expansion in terms of 
land. The bid is not focusing on the auxiliary infrastructure around it, but the expansion of the market facilities.  

Mr B.S. WYATT: Clause 9 refers to “the Minister”. Is the minister the Treasurer?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: I am acting in both capacities in this matter—Treasurer and minister.  

Mr B.S. WYATT: In subclause (3), which states that the minister cannot make an order under subsection (1) 
without the Treasurer’s approval, the minister and the Treasurer are one and the same. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: I communicate with myself! 

Mr B.S. WYATT: Subclause (1) states — 
The Minister may, by order published in the Gazette — 

(a) direct the disposal of all or specified market assets;  

Can the Treasurer confirm that the disposal is effected upon publication in the Government Gazette? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Effectively, yes. It is on the day after the day it has been published in the Gazette, or if 
a later date is specified in that order. If the order says it is on such-and-such a date, then it happens on that date, 
otherwise it is the day after gazettal.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Can the Treasurer confirm my understanding that a provision in the sales contract is that one 
wholesaler cannot have 20 per cent of the central market floor? Another valid point relates to the tenancy 
charges. I know that the Treasurer has forecast some potential savings in electricity costs, but land tax will be 
a major cost for tenants, who previously did not pay land tax. Another issue arises if any significant investment 
occurs and it relates to the charges that may be levied on tenants to help cover the cost of future investment. Can 
the Treasurer confirm that the 20 per cent cap is part of the sales process and has the Treasurer given any thought 
to capping the annual charge increase all up; that is, the annual increase in tenancy rental charges?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: There is a condition that one dealer or trader on the floor cannot control over 20 per cent of 
the market. That is a relevant issue because it has been pushed in the existing market in the past.  

Mr B.S. Wyatt: No-one has that now, do they?  

Dr M.D. NAHAN: It is very close, and also there are some family relationships that make it such that it is 
probably true. The Perth Market Authority now makes quite a bit of money on electricity. I am told it is almost 
$3 million. The authority competes in the contestable market and gets a contract at a lower price and then meters 
and charges individual stallholders at Synergy’s target rate, so it makes a profit out of that. We propose to restrict 
the amount the authority can charge above the actual price. This is not easy because there might be charges in the 
market down the track. Who knows what will happen in 20 years! We will negotiate on that, but it is in the 
vicinity of 20 per cent. The reason it has any mark-up is that it has to maintain the internal metering process, for 
reliability of supply and other aspects. That should save the customers substantial amounts. Land tax will be 
phased in over six years. The increase in the first year will be zero and will be phased in over the following 
five years. This is a profitable business.  
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Right now, the Perth Market Authority does not pay a profit tax, but it will be deductible from the company’s tax 
in the future. Land tax is a deductible expense. Did we consider regulating the fees? We are ensuring that all the 
existing leases are held for their length. There was a problem that some had arrangements that were not officially 
leases. We are going to verify these for the duration. If they are over five years, they will be grandfathered in to 
make sure that all the unknowns are dealt with. Efforts have been made to identify those and inform the bidders 
that these leases exist. We are confident that the investment that it is undertaking will lower the operating costs 
of the market facility—not increase the operating costs—and therefore lower the pressure for charges, not 
increase them. We chose not to regulate the charge, although we are grandfathering existing leases; some of 
them are for 10 years. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: What other state taxes would be applied? I understand 1 600 people work there. Would 
payroll tax be applied? No, because they are individuals. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Yes, they are individuals. I think there are currently 25 employees of the Perth Market 
Authority; hopefully, that includes full-time, part-time and some contract employees. We do not know how 
many will go over but not a large number of people operate the facility. A lot of people are working there, but 
they mostly work for the growers and marketers. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Just to clarify, of course the 1 600 people are all growers, but the Perth Market Authority 
will still have a full-time staff of—what was it? 

Dr M.D. Nahan: It is not full-time. The total full-time equivalent is 25. 

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: With an FTE of 25, payroll tax would be applicable under the new arrangements. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Potentially. I do not know what their average wage rate is, and it is a public service now. It 
might be operated in a different manner. If it has a labour bill of over $800 000, yes it will be applicable. 

Clause put and passed. 

Clause 10: Effecting disposal — 

Mr B.S. WYATT: This is quite an interesting clause. It provides the minister with a broad degree of flexibility 
in the arrangements that can be entered into to effect the disposal outlined in the previous clause. I am 
particularly interested in subclauses (4) and (5). Subclause (4) states — 

If a company is to be used for the purposes — 
This is a company that is set up — 

of a … disposal, the Under Treasurer must ensure that the necessary steps are taken on behalf of the 
State to create the company. 

Can the minister explain to the house why a company would need to be established on behalf of the state to 
effect the sale? Secondly, that flows into my question about subclause (5). If we are disposing of the asset, why 
would securities need to be received on behalf of the state by the minister, the Treasurer or the authority? Can 
the Treasurer explain what circumstance we are contemplating by creating these corporate vehicles and 
potentially creating that sort of shareholding? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: That is very interesting. 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: I was eavesdropping but I could not hear it all. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: An adviser to Treasury advised that the most likely preferred structure would be to set up 
two companies—one that owns the land and the other that owns the other assets. 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: The other assets being the business? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: They are the buildings and other rolling stock. They have tractors and all that stuff—all the 
operational stuff. The advice was to have two companies—we are making this advice possible—and to sell those 
shares in full in both of them. That facilitates what the member for South Perth was saying was a possibility of 
separating out the asset ownership from the operations. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: Thank you. Can the Treasurer explain why there would need to be a share allocation to the 
minister or to the state, in whatever form? Secondly, if indeed that is the sale process—splitting the 
two companies, the land and other assets—will all those conditions around the use of the facilities and the  
20-year stipulation that we will deal with later in the bill apply to both companies? Does the minister know what 
I am saying? Will it apply to both companies? I will deal with that question first. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: That is the advice and the Under Treasurer is responsible for setting up the corporation. 
When it is initially set up, before it is transferred, it has to own the shares. 
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Mr B.S. Wyatt: That is for a transitional — 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: It has to be made ready and it has to be structured so that it can be transferred. The 
conditions and all these things apply to the land, including the central trading zone, I think it is called. That is 
where the value of the property is and that is where the conditions that we have discussed apply. The conditions 
that we just discussed about maximum ownership of the facility apply to the whole thing. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: We talked about the charge, the lien and the right the state will have over the land. Will 
a similar interest be created, if it is onsold this way, in the company that has all the other assets other than the 
land? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Let me get this straight. There are two companies. One has all the fixed assets and the value; 
the other one will be an operating company that basically transacts between the tenants and the landholders. 
They are owned by the same party, too. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: I do not even know the question I am going to ask after that answer. I am just trying to 
understand because, obviously, out of the four bids, the fact that this clause is in the bill means that some sort of 
structure such as this is likely to be the outcome. 

Dr M.D. Nahan: Probably, yes. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: I am just trying to understand where it goes. What I mean is, if the land, which I assume has 
the greater value—it is the land that is the value. 

Dr M.D. Nahan: Overwhelmingly. 

Mr B.S. WYATT: Okay. The land will go into one company. It will have a caveat over it for that company and 
there will be another company that will have all the other assets. That is the operating company. Is there any 
intention to create a similar security for the state over that company, or is the view that the land is the value; that 
is where security will be kept? 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: The caveat is the title of the land. 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: Yes; that is right. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: Let us say there are two companies, A and B. A owns the land; the caveat is on the land and 
that is where the value is. 

Mr B.S. Wyatt: Yes, but there is no intent to take other securities over the other assets. 

Dr M.D. NAHAN: No.  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: I am slightly—what is the word?—trying to work this out. 

Mr R.F. Johnson: Confused?  

Ms R. SAFFIOTI: Confused is the word, but I was trying not to say that. There could possibly be 
two companies: one that owns the land and one that owns the building and equipment—the operating company. 
I think the member for Victoria Park, like me, was trying to understand how conditions of sale could be enforced 
over the operating company if it does not have any land and there is no caveat over the property.  

Debate interrupted, pursuant to standing orders. 

[Continued on page 8093.] 
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